FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION December 31, 2024 and 2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	PAGE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT	1
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:	
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS	4
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:	
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION	8
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION	9
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS	10
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	11
INTERNAL CONTROL:	
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN	



165 Orinoco Drive Brightwaters, NY 11718 T: 631.665.7040 | F: 631.665.7014

1010 Northern Boulevard Great Neck, NY 11021 T: 516.883.5510 | F: 516.767.7438

www.sheehancpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation Hempstead, New York

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation (the Corporation), a component unit of the Town of Hempstead, New York, as of and for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Corporation's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Corporation as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the changes in its financial position and cash flows, thereof, for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Corporation and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Corporation's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not absolute assurance and, therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and *Government Auditing Standards* will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and *Government Auditing Standards*, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.



To the Board of Directors Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation Page 3

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Corporation's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 7 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated March 18, 2025, on our consideration of the Corporation's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation's internal control over financial report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Corporation's internal control over financial report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Corporation's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Sheehan & Company CPA, P.C

Brightwaters, New York March 18, 2025



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Management's Discussion and Analysis Unaudited

Management's Discussion and Analysis

This section represents Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation's (the Corporation), a component unit of the Town of Hempstead, financial condition and activities for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. Please read this information in conjunction with the financial statements.

Financial Highlights - 2024 and 2023

- The assets of the Corporation exceeded its liabilities at the close of 2024 and 2023, by \$2,000,498 and \$2,092,784, respectively. These funds are unrestricted and available to maintain the Corporation's continuing obligations.
- The Corporation's total net position decreased by \$92,286 for the year ended December 31, 2024, and decreased by \$86,407 for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Overview

The MD&A serves as an introduction to the basic financial statements. The MD&A represents management's examination and analysis of the Corporation's financial condition and performance.

The financial statements report information about the Corporation, which is a self-supporting entity that follows enterprise-type fund reporting. The Corporation applies full accrual accounting methods as used by similar business activities in the private sector. These statements offer short and long-term financial information.

The financial statements include statements of net position, statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, statements of cash flows, and notes to financial statements. The statements of net position include all of the Corporation's assets and liabilities, with the difference reported as net position.

The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position present the results of the Corporation's activities over the course of the year and information as to how the net position changed during the year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.

The statements of cash flows present changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from operating and other activities.

Management's Discussion and Analysis Unaudited

Overview (continued)

The notes to financial statements provide required disclosures and other information that is essential to a full understanding of material data provided in the statements. The notes present information about the Corporation's accounting policies, significant account balances and activities, material risks, obligations, commitments, contingencies, and subsequent events, if any.

Financial Analysis of the Corporation

The statements of net position and the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position provide useful information about the Corporation's annual activities. The statements report the net position of the Corporation and the changes in net position. The amount of net position, the difference between total assets and total liabilities, is a significant measure of the financial health or financial position of the Corporation. Over time, increases or decreases in the Corporation's net position is one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, other non-financial factors should be considered in evaluating the Corporation's overall financial condition.

The following comparative condensed financial statements and other selected information serve as the financial data and indicators for management's monitoring and planning.

Condensed Net Position

A summary of the Corporation's condensed statements of net position at December 31, is presented as follows:

	2024	2023	2022
Assets:			
Current assets	\$ 2,012,550	\$ 2,102,515	\$ 2,188,764
Total assets	2,012,550	2,102,515	2,188,764
Liabilities:			ê
Current liabilities	12,052	9,731	9,573
Total liabilities	12,052	9,731	9,573
Net position:			
Unrestricted	2,000,498	2,092,784	2,179,191
Total net position	\$ 2,000,498	\$ 2,092,784	\$ 2,179,191

Management's Discussion and Analysis Unaudited

Condensed Net Position (continued)

Type text here

Total assets as of December 31, 2024, were \$2,012,550, which exceeded total liabilities of \$12,052 by \$2,000,498 (net position). The Corporation's net position was unrestricted and available to support operations. Total assets decreased by \$89,965 (4.3%) at December 31, 2024, compared to 2023, due to a decrease in cash and cash equivalents. Total liabilities increased by \$2,321 (23.9%) at December 31, 2024, compared to 2023, due to an increase in amounts of accrued expenses related to a shared services agreement between the Corporation and a related organization, the Town of Hempstead Industrial Development Agency (the Agency). The Corporation's net position decreased by \$92,286 due to current operating expenses exceeding current year fee revenue and interest income.

Total assets as of December 31, 2023, were \$2,102,515, which exceeded total liabilities of \$9,731 by \$2,092,784 (net position). The Corporation's net position was unrestricted and available to support operations. Total assets decreased by \$86,249 (3.9%) at December 31, 2023, compared to 2022, due to a decrease in cash and cash equivalents. Total liabilities increased by \$158 (1.7%) at December 31, 2023, compared to 2022, due to an increase in amounts of accrued expenses related to a shared services agreement between the Corporation and the Agency. The Corporation's net position decreased by \$86,407 due to 2023 operating expenses exceeding 2023 year fee revenue and interest income.

Operating Results

The Corporation's condensed statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position for the years ended December 31, are presented as follows:

	 2024	 2023	 2022
Operating revenues	\$ 23,000	\$ 23,500	\$ 252,928
Operating expenses	 149,925	 142,811	145,110
Income (loss) from operations	 (126,925)	(119,311)	 107,818
Non-operating income	 34,639	32,904	 6,222
Change in net position	(92,286)	(86,407)	114,040
Net position, beginning of year	 2,092,784	 2,179,191	 2,065,151
Net position, end of year	\$ 2,000,498	\$ 2,092,784	\$ 2,179,191

Management's Discussion and Analysis Unaudited

Operating Results (continued)

The Corporation's operating revenues decreased by 500 (2.1%) from 23,500 in 2023 to 23,000 in 2024. The decrease is attributable to fluctuations in annual and compliance fees. The Corporation's expenses increased to 149,925 in 2024 from 142,811 in 2023, an increase of 7,114 (5.0%). This is primarily due to fluctuations in expense amounts, including an increase in salaries expenses.

The Corporation's operating revenues decreased by \$229,428 (90.7%) from \$252,928 in 2022 to \$23,500 in 2023. The decrease is attributable to less project fees being earned in 2023. There were no projects closed in 2023, while there was one project closed in 2022. The Corporation's expenses decreased to \$142,811 in 2023 from \$145,110 in 2022, a decrease of \$2,299 (1.6%). This is primarily due to fluctuations in expense amounts, including a decrease in advertising expenses.

Contacting the Corporation's Financial Management:

This financial report is designed to provide readers with a general overview of the Corporation's finances and to show the Corporation's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation at: 350 Front Street, Hempstead, New York 11550 or at: (516) 489-5000 ext. 3706.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION December 31, 2024 and 2023

	2024	2023
Assets:		
Current assets:		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 2,012,550	\$ 2,102,515
Total assets	2,012,550	2,102,515
Liabilities: Current liabilities: Accrued expenses	12,052	9,731
Total liabilities	12,052	9,731
Net position: Unrestricted	2,000,498	2,092,784
Total net position	\$ 2,000,498	\$ 2,092,784

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements -8-

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

	2024	2023	
Operating revenues:			
Fees for services	\$ 23,000	\$ 23,500	
Operating expenses:			
Salaries	92,136	89,483	
Payroll taxes and fees	9,580	9,311	
Rent	16,889	15,000	
Contractual and professional fees	20,605	18,864	
Advertising	5,000	5,000	
Office and related expenses	4,840	4,279	
Telephone expense	875	874	
Total operating expenses	149,925	142,811	
Loss from operations	(126,925)	(119,311)	
Non-operating income:			
Interest income	34,639	32,904	
Change in net position	(92,286)	(86,407)	
Net position, January 1	2,092,784	2,179,191	
Net position, December 31	\$ 2,000,498	\$ 2,092,784	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

	2024	2023	
Cash flows from operating activities:			
Cash received:			
From providing services	\$ 23,000	\$ 23,500	
Cash payments:			
Contractual services	(45,888)	(35,859)	
Personal services and employee benefits	(101,716)	(98,794)	
Net cash from operating activities	(124,604)	(111,153)	
Cash flows from investing activities:	24.620	22 004	
Interest income	34,639	32,904	
Net cash from investing activities	34,639	32,904	
Net change in cash and cash equivalents	(89,965)	(78,249)	
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1	2,102,515	2,180,764	
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31	\$ 2,012,550	\$ 2,102,515	
Reconciliation of Loss From Operations to Net Cash From Operating Activities			
Loss from operations	\$ (126,925)	\$ (119,311)	
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash from operating activities:			
Change in accounts receivable	-	8,000	
Change in accrued expenses	2,321	158	
Total adjustments to change in net position	2,321	8,158	
	· · · · ·	· · · · · ·	
Net cash from operating activities	\$ (124,604)	\$ (111,153)	
1 0			

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements -10-

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Nature of Activities

The Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation (the Corporation) was created in 1966 by the Town Board of the Town of Hempstead, under the provisions of the Laws of New York State. The Corporation is a corporation as defined in subparagraph (a)(5) of Section 102 of the Not-For-Profit Corporation Law and is a Type C corporation with members under section 201 of said law. The purpose of the Corporation is to relieve and reduce unemployment, promote and provide for additional and maximum employment, improve and maintain job opportunities, instruct or train individuals to improve or develop their capabilities for such jobs, carry on scientific research for the purpose of aiding the Town of Hempstead by attracting new industry, through the encouragement of the development of or retention of an industry and lessen the burdens of the government, while acting in the public interest.

The Corporation is governed by a Board of Directors whose members are appointed by the Town of Hempstead Board and is considered a component unit of the Town of Hempstead. In accordance with The Corporation's By-Laws, the Board of Directors shall consist of no fewer than three directors and no more than seven directors. At December 31, 2024, seven positions were filled. All governmental activities and functions performed by the Corporation are its direct responsibility. No other governmental organizations have been included or excluded from the reporting entity.

The financial reporting entity includes functions and activities over which Corporation directors exercise oversight responsibility. Oversight responsibility is determined on the basis of financial interdependency, selection of governing authority, designations of management and ability to significantly influence operations and accountability for fiscal matters. The Corporation has been determined to be a component unit of the Town of Hempstead, New York.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting: The Corporation utilizes the accrual basis of accounting and the flow of economic resources measurement focus. The basis of accounting and measurement focus emphasize the measurement of net income similar to the approach used by commercial enterprises. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred. Under this basis of accounting and measurement focus, the Corporation applies all Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements and United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (US GAAP), except those that conflict with a GASB pronouncement.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

<u>Cash and cash equivalents</u>: For purposes of the statements of cash flows, investments with maturities of three months or less when purchased are considered cash equivalents.

<u>Use of estimates</u>: The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. The Corporation's results are affected by economic, political, legislative, regulatory, and legal actions. Economic conditions, such as recessionary trends, inflation, interest and monetary exchange rates, government fiscal policies, and changes in the prices of materials can have a significant impact on the Corporation's operations. These factors and other events may cause actual results to differ from management's estimates.

Accounts receivable: There were no outstanding receivables at December 31, 2024 or 2023.

<u>Property and equipment</u>: Property and equipment are stated at cost. It is the Corporation's practice to capitalize expenditures greater than \$2,000 with an estimated useful life of greater than one year. All property and equipment are fully depreciated at December 31, 2024 and 2023.

Depreciation: Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Net position classifications: Net position is classified and displayed in three components, as applicable:

- **a.** <u>Net investment in capital assets</u>: Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.
- **b.** <u>Restricted net position</u>: Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
- c. <u>Unrestricted net position</u>: All other balances in net position that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net investment in capital assets."

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

<u>Revenue recognition</u>: The Corporation's primary sources of operating revenue are from application fees, administrative fees, and compliance fees. Administrative fees are computed as a percentage of the total project. Fees for services are recorded as income when earned at the time of project closing.

<u>Advertising costs</u>: Advertising costs are charged to operations when incurred. Advertising costs for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, were \$5,000 and \$5,000, respectively.

Income tax status: The Corporation was duly established under Sections 402 and 1411 of the Not-For-Profit Corporation Law and is a corporate quasi-governmental agency performing an essential governmental function. The income of the Corporation is excludable from gross income under Section 115(i) of the Internal Revenue Code and, accordingly, these financial statements do not reflect a provision for income taxes.

<u>Recent accounting pronouncements</u>: The Corporation has adopted all current standards of the GASB that are applicable.

<u>Subsequent events</u>: Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date of the report, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

3. Conduit Debt Obligations, Bond Transactions

The Corporation induces the issuance of tax-exempt bonds to provide financial assistance to non-profit entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial, recreational and commercial facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance. The Corporation has not provided any additional or voluntary commitment to support this debt service beyond the collateral, the payments from the private-sector entities, and the maintenance of the tax-exempt status of the conduit debt. Further, neither the Corporation, the State, nor any political subdivision, thereof, is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, outstanding debt induced by the Corporation and issued by other entities amount to \$593,995,000 and \$612,440,000, respectively. Debt service is paid directly to the lender by the entity that incurred the supplemental debt. The Corporation has no liability or contingent liability for payment.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Corporation's investments are governed by a formal investment policy. The Corporation's Board of Director's responsibility for administration of the investment program is delegated to the chief executive officer pursuant to resolution.

The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to invest monies not required for immediate expenditure. Permissible investments include special time deposit accounts, certificates of deposit, obligations of the United States of America, obligations guaranteed by agencies of the United States of America where the payment of principal and interest are guaranteed by the United States of America, and obligations of New York State. All deposits, including certificates of deposit and special time deposits, in excess of the amount insured under the provisions of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act must be secured by a pledge of eligible securities with an aggregate market value or provided by General Municipal Law. Eligible securities used for collateralizing deposits are to be held by the bank or trust company pursuant to security and custodial agreements.

Deposits are required to be disclosed as exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the deposits are either:

- Uncollateralized.
- Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution in the Corporation's name.
- Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent, but not in the Corporation's name.

At December 31, 2024, the Corporation's bank balances were \$2,013,441. Of that total, \$250,000 was covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and \$1,763,441 was secured by collateral held by the pledging financial institution's agent, a third-party financial institution, but not in the Corporation's name.

At December 31, 2023, the Corporation's bank balances were \$2,105,104. Of that total, \$250,000 was covered by the FDIC and \$1,855,104 was secured by collateral held by the pledging financial institution's agent, a third-party financial institution, but not in the Corporation's name.

5. Revenues

The Corporation collects fees from its projects as follows:

<u>Application fee</u>: The Corporation charges a non-refundable fee of \$3,000 at the time of receiving a formal application for assistance.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. **Revenues (continued)**

<u>Administrative fee</u>: The Corporation charges a one-time administrative fee on taxexempt bond projects as follows:

projects as follows.	<u>Percentage of Value</u>
Up to \$25,000,000	0.5%
\$25,000,000 and over	0.2%

<u>Annual compliance fees</u>: The Corporation charges an initial compliance fee of \$3,000 and an annual compliance fee of \$1,500 for the term of bonds for any project that closed after February 1, 2016. The fee covers the cost of annual reporting and monitoring of the transaction. The fee is subject to periodic review and can be adjusted at the discretion of the Corporation.

Corporation Counsel's fee: The fee for Corporation's Counsel is approximately 0.1% of the amount of the bonds. The applicant pays the Corporation's counsel fee. For terminations, consents, second mortgages, and other financings, Corporation counsel shall bill at the prevailing hourly rate.

Bond/Transaction Counsel fee: The applicant pays the Bond/Transaction Counsel fee.

Miscellaneous fees:

	<u>Minimum Amount</u>
Extension of inducement	\$500 - \$1,000
Document processing	\$1,000 - \$2,000
Refinancing of bonds*	0.5% outstanding bonds, plus administrative fee for new money
Assumption of outstanding bonds*	0.125% outstanding bonds, plus administrative fee for new money
Termination fee	\$1,000
Consent, 2nd mortgages and other financings	Set by Board on a case to case basis

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. **Revenues (continued)**

* These fees are subject to adjustment at the discretion of the Corporation, based on the complexity of the transaction involved.

The Corporation recognizes its fees for services as operating revenues. Non-operating income results from activities not related to these transactions.

6. **Related-Party Transactions**

The Corporation shares office space with the Agency, a related party. The Corporation and the Agency have the same chief executive officer and chief financial officer.

The Agency and the Corporation have an agreement in which the Corporation reimburses the Agency for shared costs, including office space, supplies, and telephone. These expenses have been reflected in the appropriate expense categories. Amounts reimbursed to the Agency for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, were \$21,887 and \$19,150, respectively. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Corporation owed \$11,805 and \$9,544, respectively, to the Agency, which is reflected on the statements of net position as accrued expenses.

INTERNAL CONTROL



165 Orinoco Drive Brightwaters, NY 11718 T: 631.665.7040 | F: 631.665.7014

1010 Northern Boulevard Great Neck, NY 11021 T: 516.883.5510 | F: 516.767.7438

www.sheehancpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation Hempstead, New York

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation (the Corporation) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Corporation's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated March 18, 2025.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Corporation's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation's internal control.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Corporation's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

To the Board of Directors Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation Hempstead, New York

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Corporation's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Corporation's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Sheehan & Company CPA, P.C

Brightwaters, New York March 18, 2025

